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Port Gamble lies in the nation's greatest reservoir of old growth saw timber; the
great forests are composed principally of Douglas fir, but also include large
stands of hemlock, cedar, and spruce. Nowhere in the world is there concentrated
in such a relatively small area such a large quantity of timber.

Port Gamble's buildings, grounds and history encapsulate the drama of the trans-
plantation of a venerable New England community to colonize upon Puget Sound--with
the consequent enrichment of Washington life over the years. An importnat part of
Port Gamble's history also involves the interplay of this New England community with
equally interesting Irish, Chinese and American Indian groups.

An old grist mill was built in the early days and operated by power from the sawmill.
The flour from this mill was sold in British Columbia, Seattle and other sections of
the Sound. There was also an old octagonal blockhouse erected out of logs at Port
Gamble as soon as the mill was established which served a a fort and offered protec-
tion against the Indians. The site of the old blockhouse was occupied in later years
by a blacksmith shop.

One of the amusing incidents of life at Port Gamble in the early days was that someone
imported some pigs which were allowed to run loose and fed on scraps thrown out of the
window of the cookhouse which stood on the edge of the beach. In time, these pigs
became very numerous and seemed to learn that when the mill whistle blew it was feed-
ing time and immediately rushed down the alley to the cookhouse in such large droves
that it was all one's life was worth to attempt to walk in the alley at the same time.
The alley has become known as pig alley.

On entering Port Gamble's main street is a row of extremely beautiful trees on each
side of the street. It is said that these trees were transplanted from East Machias,
Maine. The town and mill had a water system obtained from an artesian well.

Port Gamble is still owned by Pope & Talbot, Inc. A portion of the original village
has been demolished but still standing are some small Greek Revival homes erected in
the 1860's, 5 New England box-type residences, several Victorian houses, a church
built in 1871, a Masonic Hall, community center and company store. The existing and
still active sawmill and docks were wrebuilt in 1926. Among the original buildings
still standing are the following:

Walker-Ames House (1887)

Captain D. B. Jackson Home (1871)
M. S. Drew House (1870)

General Store (1853)

Port Gamble Sawmill (1853)

The Thompson House (1859)

St. Paul's Episcopal Church (1870)
Captain William Gove House (1873)
U.S. Post Office (1853)

Masonic Temple (1870) 10.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Port Gamble was one of the earliest and most important lumber producing centers of
the Puget Sound region. Today, Port Gamble is the finest surviving example of that
region's many 19th century lumber towns.

In July 1853, Captain William C. Talbot of San Francisco and East Mathias, Maine
arrived in Puget Sound in the 50-ton schooner Julius Pringle, and began searching
the region for a good sawmill site. Five miles south of the entrance to Hood Canal,
a small heavily forested peninsula jutted out to form a sheltered bay about two miles
long and half mile wide. On the west side of this bay, he selected a level sandy
spot as the site for the mill. Known first as Teekalet, from the Indian settlement
by that name on the bay, the name was changed to Port Gamble in the mid-i860's.

Captain Talbot landed his men, and using eastern timber, erected a bunkhouse,
cookhouse, and store and roofed these buildings with cedar shakes split from trees
growing on the site. Leaving a crew of 10 men to lay the foundation and construct

the frame of the new sawmill, Talbot returned to San Francisco. Talbot and his
partners Andrew J. Pope, Charles Foster, and Josiah P. Keller had logged and built
ships in Maine since revolutionary times. In 1849, they had joined the gold rush

to California and had come to San Francisco. In 1853 they were extending lumbering
operations to the virgin forest of the Washington territory, having incorporated the
Puget Sound Mill Company with a capital of $30,000 for this purpose on December 20,
1852. 1In September 1853, the 157-ton schooner L. P. Foster, commanded by Captain Kel-
ler, arrived at Port Gamble loaded with the machinery for the new steam-powered saw-
mill. A week later the muley saw and mill, which measured about 45 by 70 feet, were
in operation. The plant could saw about 2,000 feet of lumber a day. New and improved
machinery was installed in?January 1854, which increased the capacity to 15,000 feet

a day. 'Production’dt:Pért Gamble in 1854 amounted to 3,673,797 feet of sawed lumber,*
64,000. shingles, 42;103%feét of piles, and 223 masts and spars, valued at $70,999.60.
In {1856,.52 vessels loaded fat Port Gamble, and in 1857 almost 8 million feet were cut,
the daily output’of+themill then being 25,000 feet. Port Gamble was then comprised
of?the company owned mill,?wharves, dwellings, stores, and shops. 1In 1858, a second
mill, measuring 55 by 250 feet, with a daily capacity of 60,000 feet was erected. A
new mill dock and a merchandise wharf were also constructed. About 175 men were then
employed at Port Gamble. By 1861, the Puget Mill Company also owned and operated a
fleet of 10 sailing vessels that had a combined capacity of between 3,000,000 and
4,000,000 feet of lumber. The company had also acquired 32,658 acres of timberland
by 1864,
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In 1874, the Puget Mill Company was reorganized and its capitalization increased to
$2,000,000 in order to finance expansion of the Pope § Talbot empire. In March 1877,
the Puget Mill Company purchased the Utsaladdy sawmill on Camano Island. In 1878,
the Puget Mill Company next acquired the Port Ludlow sawmill for $64,000. By 1875
the company was the largest holder of timberlands in the Territory of Washington.

In addition, 99,000,000 feet of lumber was produced annually.

In 1925, the Charles R. McCormick Company of Delaware acquired the Puget Mill Company,
and in 1926 the old mill at Port Gamble was demolished and replaced by a mill with a
capacity of 300,000 feet per 8-hour day. The old docks were also completely rebuilt.
In April 1938, the Pope and Talbot Lumber Company was incorporated to take over the
former McCormick properties. In 1940 the new firm was again reorganized under the
name of Pope and Talbot Inc.

Because of the limited amount of timber left at Port Gamble, the 1926 mill was
reduced in capacity. The Port Gamble sawmill is still active, although operating
now on this reduced scale.



